
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
This will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in accordance with The Local Authorities 
and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 

Revised 18 November 2020  
 
To:  The Town Clerk and all Members of Leighton-Linslade Town Council 

 
NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend an extraordinary meeting of Leighton-Linslade 

Town Council to be held on Monday, 23 November 2020 commencing at 7.30 pm to 

be held remotely This will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in 

accordance with The Local Authorities and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of 

Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020. The meeting link is below:  

https://tinyurl.com/y2zrjh5w 

 

This extraordinary meeting is convened in accordance with Standing Order 6, at the 
request of Councillors R Goodchild and S Owen (agenda items 3-7). 

 
 
Cllr. Mrs. F. Kharawala 
Town Mayor 

 
REVISED AGENDA  

(items 8 & 9 added 18.11.20) 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/
https://tinyurl.com/y2zrjh5w


LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 23 November 2020 
 

 

 

 

3.   BUS SHELTERS (Pages 1 - 2) 

 

 (a) To instruct the Town Clerk to urgently request confirmation from Central 
Bedfordshire Council that the temporary bus stops in West Street, Leighton 
Buzzard are to be equipped with weather shelters, additional seating, and 
electronic real time bus indicators and that this work will be carried out as soon 
as practicable. 
 
(b)  To instruct the Town Clerk to bring to Policy & Finance Committee any 
proposals for part-funding of the works identified as above by the Town 
Council. 
 

4.   SECTION 106 DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS (Pages 3 - 16) 

 

5.   LAND SOUTH OF THE HIGH STREET (Pages 17 - 20) 

 

 To consider a progress report from the Town Clerk regarding this Council’s 
request in January 2020 for Central Bedfordshire Council to produce a “robust 
action plan” for the development of Land South of the High Street. 
 

6.   TOWN CENTRE BOLLARDS (Pages 21 - 22) 

 

 To discuss a report from the Town Clerk concerning the installation of bollards 
in Hockliffe Street and Bridge Street in September 2020 by Central 
Bedfordshire Council, including details of any consultation carried out with 
those businesses directly affected and with the public. 
 

7.   CANAL BRIDGE PEDESTRIAN CROSSING (Pages 23 - 24) 

 

 To instruct the Town Clerk urgently to seek action by Central Bedfordshire 
Council to place a safety barrier at the top of the ramp from the towpath up to 
the Canal Bridge pedestrian crossing, as requested nine months ago. 
 

8.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 

 The Council may consider it appropriate to consider the following resolution 
should they consider that any discussion would be prejudicial to the public 
interests: that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of 
the business about to be transacted which involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information. The public and press to withdraw from the 
meeting during consideration of detailed discussion regarding:    
 

9.   PAVILION HIRE  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
Council            

 
Date: 23rd November 2020 
 
Title: The Provision of Temporary Bus Shelters  

 
Purpose of the Report: A) To instruct the Town Clerk to urgently request 

confirmation from Central Bedfordshire Council that 
the temporary bus stops in West Street, Leighton 
Buzzard are to be equipped with weather shelters, 
additional seating, and electronic real time bus 
indicators and that this work will be carried out as 
soon as practicable. 

 
 B) To instruct the Town Clerk to bring to Policy & 

Finance Committee any proposals for part-funding of 
the works identified as above by the Town Council.  

 
Contact Officer:                Mark Saccoccio – Town Clerk 
                                            

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
  

Should Members be minded:- 
 
1.1 To accept or otherwise part-funding of £2,000 from the Local Authority to 

support the Town Council’s purchase of said bus shelters.   
 
2 BUS SHELTERS: 
 
2.1 A) Central Bedfordshire Council has confirmed that the bus stops in West Street 

will be equipped with additional seating and real time information. It is anticipated 
that the first set of shelters will be installed the week beginning 16th November 
and the second set the week beginning the 23rd November 2020.  

 
2.2 B) Funding was discussed and resolved by Policy and Finance Committee on 29 

October 2020 (Minute reference 153/PF).  
 
It is understood that the local authority is prepared to contribute £2,000 toward 
the part-funding of the bus shelters. The decision to accept the contribution is a 
matter for Council to decide as per the recommendation at 1.1. 

 
END 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
Council              

 
Date: 23rd November 2020 
 
Title: S106 Workshop   

 
Purpose of the Report: To consider a report from the Town Clerk of the 

outcomes of the S106 Workshop provided to town 
councillors by Central Bedfordshire Council on 2nd 
September 2020 which followed a request unanimously 
agreed by the Town Council in January 2020. 

 
Contact Officer:                Mark Saccoccio – Town Clerk 
 
   
 
                                          

 
1. CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The Town Council is not the Planning Authority with statutory plan 

making, determining and monitoring functions resting with Central 
Bedfordshire Council.  

 
2 PURPOSE  
 
2.1 The purpose of the workshop held 2nd September 2020 was to provide Town 

Council Members with an update on the progress of the urban extension known 
as “Land East”. In addition, the session also provided the Principal Authority with 
the opportunity to update Members of the contributions secured for the urban 
extension by way of S106 Planning Obligations. 
 
 
BACKGROUND  
 

2.2 With plan making and decision-making responsibility resting with the Principal 
Authority (Central Bedfordshire Council), it is they who lead on securing planning 
obligations, delivery and monitoring thereafter.   
 

2.3 Under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, planning obligations 
are a mechanism which make a development proposal acceptable in planning 
terms that would otherwise not be acceptable. They are focused on site specific 
mitigation of the impact of development. For a planning obligation to be found 
sound, the following tests are to be met: 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



  

Page 2 of 14   

 

a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms 
b) directly related to the development; and  
c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development 
 

2.4 The S106 (Legal Agreement) is made between the planning authority and the 
landowner. Third parties such as parish councils will not be involved with the 
negotiation albeit their early input is crucial in helping secure community benefits 
such as infrastrucutre (buildings and spaces that provide services, activities and 
opportunities). Although S106 funding cannot be used to meet existing 
infrastructure deficits, it can be used in a way that will benefit the wider 
community that is, existing and new residents. Examples of what are considered 
to be community benefits include employment land, open space, parks, 
allotments, burial land, roads, cycle lanes, schools, community buildings, health 
care provision, sports pitches, enhanced bus services and affordable housing. 
All S106 monies that are collected are collected for a purpose as agreed within 
the legal document by the relevant parties. It is rare for parties to seek to vary 
the agreement once signed. However, there may be circumstances which force 
this albeit the signatories will have to agree to vary the agreement.  

 
 
2.5  As part of the workshop, Members were keen to better understand how the Town 

Council has been involved in helping secure community benefits that meet its 
own objectives as set out within Big Plan and Big Plan II. As plans, it is 
commendable that the Town Council(s) of the time had the vision to create 
community led plans such as the Big Plan and Big Plan II to help inform the 
eastern urban extension which rounds off the parish. Contextually, development 
on this scale is unlikely to take place within the emerging Local Plan period and 
even if it were, it would fall outside of the parish boundary and be the 
responsibility of a neighbouring parish with whom the principal authority would 
engage.   

 
 

3 THE BIG PLAN AND TOWN COUNCIL ENGAGEMENT IN DELIVERING 
COMMUNITY BENEFITS  

 
3.1 The following paragraph is taken from the East of Leighton Linslade Framework 

Plan which was adopted by Central Bedfordshire Council in June 2013. 
 
https://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/migrated_images/east-linslade-
framework-plan_tcm3-6810.pdf 
 

 “In preparing this Framework Plan account has also been taken of Leighton 
Linslade Town Councils’ “Big Plan” for the town which identifies a number of 
significant improvements which it wishes to obtain for the town as part of any 
development process. This document, which was recently updated in January 
2011, identifies a whole range of new and improved social infrastructure, 
including additional open space and parks, which are needed by the existing 
residents as well as by any residents moving into new accommodation”. 

 
 

Page 4

https://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/migrated_images/east-linslade-framework-plan_tcm3-6810.pdf
https://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/migrated_images/east-linslade-framework-plan_tcm3-6810.pdf


  

Page 3 of 14   

 

3.2 The community led Big Plan and Big Plan II are the core documents which have 
informed the Framework Plan and subsequent planning applications. The 
following table sets out the Framework Aim and how this responds to the 
objectives as set out within the Big Plan documents.  

 
 
Framework Plan Aims and how they meet Big Plan Objectives  
 
 

Big Plan Objectives  Framework Plan Aim Infrastructure 
to be delivered 
through the 
urban 
extension 
known as Land 
East  

Employment land on 
eastern urban extension  

To secure a much better range of 
serviced employment sites within 
the town; this will assist growth 
within the local economy (in 
accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework) and 
improve levels of self-containment 
thereby reducing outward 
commuting from the town; 

Yes 

Secure approval for a new 
road on the eastern edge of 
the town, reducing traffic in 
the town centre 

Eastern link road  Yes 

Affordable/shared 
ownership 
Recognised within the Big 
Plan as a key objective with 
a mix of affordable rented 
and shared ownership 
units.  

To ensure that the proposals deliver 
a range of new houses including 
affordable housing and assisted 
living for the elderly which secures 
the 2,500 dwellings identified in the 
Development Strategy at East of 
Leighton Linslade and to provide a 
range of house types and tenures 
so as to become an “inclusive” 
community; 

Yes 

Ensure social and 
community infrastructure is 
available in first phase of 
future development.  
This is echoed by the 
Planning and Transport 
Committee in its comments 
to CBC  

To ensure that the requisite 
physical, social and community 
infrastructure is made available in a 
timely manner to meet the needs of 
new and existing residents; Big 
Plan 

Yes  

Continued investment in 
the cycling network and 
encouragement of 
increased cycling. 

To assist in meeting the existing 
deficit of formal and informal open 
space around the town, including 
contributing towards the “Green 

Yes  

Page 5



  

Page 4 of 14   

 

Leighton-Linslade Green 
Wheel. 
Document adopted by the 
Town Council at its meeting 
held 28th September 2020 

Wheel” as set out in the Town 
Council’s “Big Plan”; more open 
space will encourage healthier 
lifestyles; 

Town Centre and Retail 
Improvements  

To assist in the regeneration of 
Leighton Linslade Town Centre and 
secure appropriate reuses on land 
affected by quarrying activities; 

The 
development in 
terms of its 
critical mass is 
anticipated to 
support the town 
centre by 
contributing to 
additional 
footfall  

Continue to support the 
implementation of flood 
protection measures for 
Clipstone Brook  

To ensure that all new built 
development avoids flood plain 
areas and that the new 
infrastructure assists in managing 
flood risk, water quality and water 
conservation within the town; 

Expected to 
have been 
addressed as 
part of 
preliminary civil 
engineering 
works 

Campaign for 
improvements in bus 
services and community 
transport services 

To make provision for the 
introduction of new and improved 
public transport to service the site at 
an early stage so as to reduce 
reliance on private motor vehicles; 
this will also improve public 
transport services for existing 
residents on the eastern side of the 
Town Centre; 

Yes 
contributions 
sought for public 
transport which 
in turn will 
benefit existing 
residents 

Recognised within the Big 
Plan as a major tourist 
attraction  

To ensure the protection of heritage 
assets (including the Narrow Gauge 
Railway), archaeological and 
ecological assets currently existing 
on the site, whilst at the same time 
seeking to achieve higher levels of 
biodiversity within an enhanced 
Green Infrastructure network; 

 

Promote renewable energy 
and sustainable living to 
residents.  

To ensure that the proposed 
development will deliver buildings 
which are highly resource efficient 
(especially with regards to energy 
and water use). 

Yes 

The Big Plan seeks the 
promotion of “soft edges” to 
improve access nearby 
countryside and 
developments to enhance 
the town’s character.  

To achieve a high-quality built 
environment which is designed to 
integrate with open space elements 
and which is carried through at 
each stage in the development 
process. 

At the detailed 
planning 
application 
stage, the 
Transport and 
Planning 
Committee 

Page 6



  

Page 5 of 14   

 

should be 
encourage to 
make 
representations 
on the grounds 
that design, 
visual 
appearance and 
countryside 
access be 
carefully 
considered.  

 
 

 
3.3 Big Plan II includes the following objectives which in part will be met by the Land 

East Development: 
 

 Additional Cemetery Land – Stearn Land Agreement  

 Additional Allotment Land – Chamberlains Barn Agreement  

 Healthcare Provision – Clipstone Park – provision of surgery land. Of 
equal importance is the Health Hub which is being pursued by the Town 
Council through Partnership Committee and the Town Counicl’s Health 
Task and Finish Group which has been established.   

 
 
4.0 REALISING BIG PLAN OBJECTIVES THROUGH THE S106 PROCESS 
 
4.1    Chamberlains Barn  
 

This is a summary of the requirements in the S106 agreement dated 28.8.15 
under planning permission CB/11/1937/OUT. For full details please refer to the 
S106 agreement 

 
  

Highways  
Eastern Link Road phase 1a – plan c  Occupation of 200 dwellings  

Eastern Link Road phase 1b Occupation of 400 dwellings 
Eastern Link Road phase 2 -plan c1 Occupation of 400 dwellings 
Eastern Link Rd phase 3 – plan c1  Occupation of 510 dwellings  

A505 roundabout at Stanbridge Rd 
scheme - plan C1 

Occupation of 510 dwellings 

Shenley Hill Link Rd – plan C Occupation of 510 dwellings   
 

Education  

Upper School land pursuant to Clipstone 
S106 

Transfer of land by 375 dwellings 

Lower School land – Plan D Transfer of land by 300 dwellings 

Page 7



  

Page 6 of 14   

 

Middle School Land pursuant to 
Clipstone S106 

Transfer of land by 375 dwellings  

Middle and Upper School contribution 
£4,067,541 

£1,355,847 by 300, 600 and 800  
dwellings 

Lower School contribution £2,600,560 £433,427 by 200 dwellings 
£433,427 by 300 dwellings 
£866,853 by 600 dwellings 
£866,853 by 800 dwellings 

 

Sports and Recreation  

Adventure playground- AP scheme approval By 200 dwellings 

Adventure playground scheme 
implementation 

By 550 dwellings 

Offer to transfer Adventure Playgound to 
Council/Nominee 

Within 20 days of issue of 
completion certificate  

First LEAP -LP1 scheme approval  By 100 dwellings 

First LEAP implementation By 250 dwellings 

Offer to transfer first LEAP to 
Council/Nominee 

Within 20 days of issue of 
completion certificate  

Second LEAP -LP2  scheme approval By 600 dwellings 

Second LEAP scheme implementation By 750 dwellings 

Offer to transfer Second LEAP to 
Council/Nominee 

Within 20 days of issue of 
completion certificate  

Laying out of Sports Pitches within Stern 
Land S106 

By 510 dwellings 

 

Informal open space and green 
infrastructure 

 

Heath Rd Open Space scheme approval By 100 dwellings 

Heath Rd Open Space implementation By 250 dwellings 

Country Park Phase 1 scheme approval  By 200 dwellings  

Country Park Phase 1 scheme 
implementation 

By 510 dwellings 

Offer to transfer Country Park Phase 1 to 
Council/Nominee 

Within 20 days of issue of 
completion certificate 

Country Park Phase 2 scheme approval  By 510 dwellings 

Country Park Phase 2 scheme 
implementation 

By 900 dwellings  

Offer to transfer Country Park Phase 2 to 
Council/Nominee 

Within 20 days of issue of 
completion certificate 

Green infrastructure maintenance contribution 
£1,083,250 
 

£108,325  by 200 dwellings  
£108,325  by 400 dwellings 
£216,650 by 650 dwellings  
£216,650 by 800 dwellings 
£433,300 by 900 dwellings  

Informal open space scheme By 450 dwellings 

Informal open space implementation By 510 dwellings 

 

Page 8



  

Page 7 of 14   

 

Community and related facilities  

Neighbourhood Community Hall Land 
transfer and community building 
contribution paid pursuant to Clipstone 
Park S106 

510 dwellings 

Convenience Retail Unit in the 
Neighbourhood centre  

900 dwellings 

Local Centre Marketing strategy 
approval  

100 dwellings 

Local Centre land laid out and serviced 400 dwellings 

Heath Rd allotments laid out 250 dwellings 

Vandyke Rd allotments laid out  850 dwellings  

 

Sustainable transport  

Bus and rail contribution £1,257,051  
 

25% of contribution before any dwellings 
occupied 
25% by 300 dwellings 
50% by 645 dwellings 
No more than £100,000 to be spent on 
railway station 

Travel plan contribution £227,645 
 

10% of contribution before any dwellings 
occupied 
25% by 300 dwellings 
25% by 600 dwellings 
40% by 900 dwellings 

Forticrete footway and cycleway scheme 
approval  

Prior to commencement of development  

Forticrete footway and cycleway scheme 
provided 

By 240 dwellings 

 

Waste   

Waste bin contribution £111,568  
 

50% Prior to occupation of 1st dwelling 
50% by 645 dwellings  

 
 
 
4.2 Clipstone Park S106  

This is a summary of the requirements in the S106 agreement dated 28.8.15 under 

planning permission CB/11/02827/OUT. For full details please refer to the S106 

agreement 

 

Highways  
Eastern Link Road part 1 Provide before 1st occupation 
Eastern Link Road part 2 Occupation of 400 dwellings 
Eastern Link Road part 2 Occupation of 645 dwellings 
A505 roundabout 5000 m2 of employment / 645 dwellings 
Stanbridge Road improvements  645 dwellings 

Page 9



  

Page 8 of 14   

 

Vandyke Road / Hockliffe Road corridor 
contribution  
(£250,000) 

50% of contribution by 300 dwellings 
Final 50% by 645 dwellings 
Contribution to be returned if not spent 
by 10 years after final payment being 
made   

Stearn land road link Occupation of 900 dwellings 
 

Education  
Upper School extension land Transfer of land by 300 dwellings 
Lower and Middle School land Transfer of land by 300 dwellings 
Upper School contribution £2,658,326 £886,108.66 of contribution by 300, 600 & 

800 dwellings 
Middle School contribution £2,537,725 £845,908.33 by 300, 600 and 800 

dwellings  
Lower School contribution £3,405,372 £1,135,124 by 300, 600 and 800 dwellings 
Upper School MUGA contribution 
£161,902 

By 750 dwellings 

Middle School MUGA contribution 
£161,902 

By 750 dwellings 

 

Sports and Recreation  

Formal open spaces scheme approval By 300 dwellings 

Formal open space scheme 
implementation 

By 500 dwellings 

LEAP A,B,C & D scheme approval By 100 dwellings 

LEAP A or C scheme implementation By 250 dwellings 

LEAP B scheme implementation By 500 dwellings 

LEAP A or C scheme implementation By 750 dwellings 

LEAP D scheme implementation By 1000 dwellings 

NEAP B  & D scheme approval By 100 dwellings 

NEAP B scheme implementation By 500 dwellings 

NEAP D scheme implementation By 1000 dwellings 

 

Informal open space and green 
infrastructure 

 

Clipstone Brook park scheme approval  By 300 dwellings 

Clipstone Brook park scheme phase 2 
approval  

By 500 dwellings 

Clipstone Brook park laid out Phase 1 By 500 dwellings 

Clipstone Brook park laid out Phase 2  By 700 dwellings  

Green Wheel part 1 scheme approval  
Green Wheel part 2 scheme approval  
Green Wheel part 3 Scheme approval  

No development of employment land 
By 50 dwellings north of Hockliffe Rd 
By 50 dwellings south of Hockliffe Rd 

Green Wheel part 1 implementation 
Green Wheel part 2 implementation  
Green Wheel part 3 implementation  

No development of employment land 
By 150 dwellings north of Hockliffe 
By 150 dwellings south of Hockliffe 

Page 10



  

Page 9 of 14   

 

Leedon open space scheme approval By 800 dwellings 

Leedon open space implementation By 1000 dwellings 

GI maintenance contribution £2,176,921 10% by 250 dwellings 
10% by 500 dwellings 
20% by 800 
20% by 1000 
40% by 1210 

 

Community and related facilities  

Either Hockliffe Road Community Land 
or Neighbourhood Community Hall Land 
provided 

50 dwellings, use or lose by 800 
dwellings 

Either Hockliffe Road Community Land 
or Neighbourhood Community Hall Land 
provided 

600 dwellings, use or lose by 1100 
dwellings 

Neighbourhood Centre approval  50 dwellings 

Marketing strategy 300 dwellings 

GP surgery land 300 dwellings 

Allotments laid out 1000 dwellings 

Allotment contribution £155,848 1000 dwellings 

Changing rooms 300 dwellings, use or lose by 1100 
dwellings 

Community buildings contribution 
£3,186,982 

£433,581 by 50 dwellings 
£1,478,975 by 300 dwellings 
£1,274,426 by 600 dwellings 

 

Sustainable transport  

Bus and rail contribution £1,201,335 25% of contribution before any dwellings 
occupied 
25% by 300 dwellings 
50% by 645 dwellings 
No more than £100,000 to be spent on 
railway station 

Travel plan contribution £800,000 
 
 
 
 
 

10% of contribution before any dwellings 
occupied 
25% by 300 dwellings 
25% by 600 dwellings 
25% by 900 dwellings 
15% by 1100 dwellings 

Clipstone Brook Path improvements 
contribution £50,000 

By 250 dwellings 

Bridge and Footpath contribution 
£120,000 

By 250 dwellings 

 

Waste   

Waste Bin Contribution £142,102 
 

50% of contribution before any dwellings 
occupied 

Page 11



  

Page 10 of 14   

 

50% by 605 dwellings   

 

Public Realm   

Public Realm Contribution £267,410 
 

50% by 500 dwellings 
50% by 1000 dwellings   

 

Employment Land    

Employment Land phase 1 fully serviced  Prior to occupation of any dwelling 

Employment marketing strategy approval  Prior to occupation of any dwelling 

Employment Land phase 2 fully serviced By 645 dwellings  

Employment land phase 2 marketing 
strategy approval and implemented  

By 645 dwellings 

 

Affordable Housing    

Refer to S106 agreement for full details  
 

  

 

Surplus Commuted sum   

Part 1 £348,796 By 300 dwellings  

Part 2 £348,796 By 500 dwellings 

Part 3 £348,796 By 700 dwellings 

Part 4 £348,796 By 900 dwellings 

Part 5 £348,796 By 1100 dwellings 

 
 
4.3 Stearn Land S106 

This is a summary of the requirements in the S106 agreement dated 28.8.15 under 

planning permission CB/11/04444/OUT. For full details please refer to the S106 

agreement 

 

Highways  
Vandyke Road to Stanbridge Link Road  
– plan c  

Occupation of 1st dwellings  

 

Education  
Middle and Upper School contribution 
£1,192,982.40 

£397,660.80 by 90 dwellings 
£397,660.80 by 180 dwellings 
£397,660.80 by 250 dwellings 

Lower School contribution £756,972.60 
as defined in Chamberlains Barn or 
Clipstone Park S106 

£242,324.20 by 90 dwellings 
£242,324.20 by 180 dwellings 
£242,324.20 by 250 dwellings 

 

Page 12



  

Page 11 of 14   

 

Sports and Recreation  

Sports Pitches scheme By 100 dwellings 

Laying out of sports pitches By 200 dwellings  

 

Informal open space and green 
infrastructure 

 

Approval of informal open space 
scheme  

By 200 dwellings 

Laying out of informal open space  By 265 dwellings 

Green infrastructure maintenance 
contribution £306,450 
 
 

£30,645 by 50 & 100 dwellings  
£61,290 by 180 & 230 dwellings 
£122,580 by 265 dwellings   

 

Community and related facilities  

Cemetery land laid out and offered for 
transfer  

185 dwellings 

Neighbourhood community land laid out   250 dwellings 

Allotments laid out & offered for transfer  100 dwellings  

 

Sustainable transport  

Bus and rail contribution £357,267 
 
 

£89,316.75 by 1 & 100 dwellings  
£178,633.50 by 185 dwellings  
No more than £50,000 to be spent on 
railway station 

Travel plan contribution £78,809  
 
 

£7880.90 by 1 dwelling 
£19,702.25 by 90 & 180 dwellings 
£31,523.60 by 250 dwellings 

Walking & Cycling contribution   £37,490 by 50 dwelllings 

 

Waste   

Waste bin contribution £31,709 
 
 

£15854.50 Prior to occupation of 1st 
dwelling &  135 dwellings  

 
 
 
4.4 Funding so far Received by Central Bedfordshire Council as the spending 

authority  
 

The following contributions have been received. All further contributions will be 

reflected in the parish reports which can be found online 

https://centralbedfordshire.app.box.com/s/446pmqtlzcnwda67o69keahkikr0hoyx

/file/727296872966 

Page 13

https://centralbedfordshire.app.box.com/s/446pmqtlzcnwda67o69keahkikr0hoyx/file/727296872966
https://centralbedfordshire.app.box.com/s/446pmqtlzcnwda67o69keahkikr0hoyx/file/727296872966


  

Page 12 of 14   

 

For clarification, “uncommitted” within the spending reports means monies that 

have been collected but not yet spent. It doesn’t mean that monies have been 

collected without intention.  

CB/11/02827/Out – Clipstone Park, Leighton Buzzard  

Schedule 6 – Community Building Contribution £483,314.31 received – 

Spending officer Sarah Hughes  

Community buildings contribution means the sum of £3,186,982 payable to the 
Council for construction or maintenance of the changing rooms, construction or 
maintenance of the Hockliffe Road Community Hall, or the construction or 
maintenance of the Neighbourhood Community Hall or other community 
facilities considered necessary by the Council to provide appropriate community 
facilities for the occupants of the development  

 
Schedule 7 – Bus & Rail Contribution £333,164.69 received – Spending officer 
Adrian Hardy/Steve Lakin  
Bus and rail contribution means the sum of £1,201,335 towards: 
1. The provision of a new bus service between the development and Leighton 
Buzzard Town Centre and Leighton Buzzard station; and/or  
2. the provision of improved access  arrangements at Leighton Buzzard station  

 
Schedule 7 – Travel Plan £88,745.19 received – Spending officer Steve Lakin  
Travel plan contribution means the sum of £800,000 ( eight hundred thousand 
pounds) as a contribution for the purposes of providing methods to encourage 
travel to and from the development by sustainable modes of transport  

 
Schedule 7 The Clipstone Brook Path Improvements Contribution 

£56,620.48  received – Spending officer Steve Lakin  

The sum of £50,000 for improvements to the path between Meadway and 

Leighton Buzzard town centre  

Schedule 7- The Bridge and Footpath Connection Contribution £135,889.15 
received – Spending Officer Steve Lakin  
The sum of £120,000 toward the construction of a bridge and footpath 
connection located at Clipstone Brook on land hatched green on Plan A and 
between the site and Meadway 

 
Schedule 8 – Waste Management £78,817.93 received  
Waste Bin Contribution is the sum of £142,102 for the provision of waste bins 
and 2 bring banks for recycling purposes for the development located in the 
Neighbourhood Centre and the Local Centre 

   
CB/11/01937/Out – Chamberlains Barn, Leighton Buzzard  

 
Schedule 8 – Bus & Rail £344,745.51 received - Spending Officer Adrian 
Hardy/Steve Lakin  
Bus and rail contribution means the sum of £1,257,051 towards: 

Page 14



  

Page 13 of 14   

 

1. The provision of a new or increased frequency bus service between the 
development and Leighton Buzzard town centre and Leighton Buzzard train 
station; and 
2. the provision of improved access arrangements at Leighton Buzzard train 
station  

 
Schedule 8 – Travel Plan £24,972.60 received – Spending Officer Steve Lakin  
Travel plan contribution means the sum of £227,645 (two hundred and twenty 
seven thousand six hundred and forty five pounds) as a contribution for the 
purposes of providing methods to encourage travel to and from the 
development by sustainable modes of transport  

 
Schedule 10 – Waste Management £61,194.92 received  
Waste Bin contribution is the sum of £111,568 (one hundred and eleven 
thousand five hundred and sixty eight pounds) for the provision of waste bins 
for the residential dwellings and 1 "bring bank" for recycling purposes for the 
development  

  

 
5.0 ON-GOING ROLE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL   
 

 In accordance with the Big Plan(s) to encourage the early and timely delivery of 
infrastructure through the Planning and Transport Committee 

 At reserve matter stage(s), to enter negotiation with the principal authority in 
respects of future management and maintenance of open spaces and play areas. 
To include negotiation around anticipated commuted sum(s) that may also come 
forward as part of on-going management of said open spaces and play areas.  

 At reserve matters, to enter negotiation with the principal authority in respects of 
the future management of any community facility that is to come forward. Design 
and layout are key factors. 

  Through the Planning and Transport Committee to encourage high quality 
design and improved access to the countryside for both existing as well as future 
residents in accordance with the community led Big Plan documents.  

 Through the Partnership Committee, for the Town Council to be actively involved 
in any review of Land South and Bridge Meadow sites.  

 Though the Partnership Committee, to continue to raise the profile of the Project 
Partnership List when the principal authority is negotiating any future S106 
Agreements.  

 
 
6.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
6.1 The S106 workshop was well received by Members by providing opportunity to 

learn more about progress in respects of the Land East development and the 
S106 Agreements which sit alongside the outline permission granted in 2015. 
The agreements and funding are already agreed. The future management of 
building(s) and open space(s) may well be a matter for consideration by this 
council. At that moment, careful consideration should be given to any commuted 
sums that will be offered as part of any future transfer.  

 

Page 15



  

Page 14 of 14   

 

6.2 The Town Council remains a key partner in the successful delivery of the urban 
extension. Through the Planning and Transport Committee and Partnership 
Committee, Members should continue to encourage the timely delivery of 
community wide benefits and encourage high quality design, as espoused by the 
community led Big Plans.  

 
 END 

Page 16



 
 
 
 
Council 

 
Date:    23rd November 2020    
 
Title:    Land South of the High Street  
 
Purpose of the Report: To consider a progress report from the 

Town Clerk regarding this Council’s 
request in January 2020 for Central 
Bedfordshire Council to produce a 
“robust action plan” for the development 
of Land South of the High Street.   

 
Contact Officers: Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk. 
 

 
 

1.0 CONTEXT 
 
1.1 At its meeting held 6th February 2020 the following item was included for 

consideration on the Partnership Agenda 
 

ENABLING DELIVERY IN L-L (LAND SOUTH OF THE HIGH STREET) and 
WESTLANDS  

 
a) To receive a verbal update from Cllr Kevin Collins of Central Bedfordshire, 
Portfolio Holder for Development Management Committee 

 
 b) To receive and note a delivery action plan inclusive of timescales for 
progressing works from Mr Mooring of Central Bedfordshire Council on land 
south of the High Street. 
 

1.2 Minute from the Meeting  
 

 ENABLING DELIVERY IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE (LAND SOUTH OF THE 
HIGH STREET AND WESTLANDS CARE HOME) 

  
a. Councillor K Collins Portfolio Holder, Executive Member Planning and 

Regeneration was unable to attend. 
  

b. Mr S Mooring gave an informative presentation of how the Land South of 
the High Street and Westlands was progressing and an action plan of 
events. 

  
A drop-in session had been arranged for Wednesday 12 February between 
2.00 pm and 8.00 pm at The White House for members of the public and 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 
  

Page 2 of 4   

 

councillors to attend to give their views on how they would like the town centre 
to evolve and improve. 
  
The Committee was updated on recent improvements to the town centre 
organised by LLTC and CBC such as free wifi across the town centre, a town 
centre benchmarking study and electronic signage. Future projects include 
improvements to Bell Alley, architectural lighting, decluttering and 
improvements to signage as well as support to retailers and traders. The 
Committee were informed that proposals for Land South of the High Street 
could not be confirmed until Westlands and the Day Centre future had been 
finalised and day care provision addressed.  Day Care provision, including the 
outcome of a public consultation, is expected to be considered by the Council 
at the earliest, by August this year.  
Members agreed that a mixture of leisure, community, retail and housing would 
be preferable for the site and that publicity regarding the drop-in session was 
imperative to encourage public engagement and views on the future of this land. 

 
 1.3 At its Meeting held 3rd September 2020, the following agenda item was included 

for consideration:  
 

 ENABLING DELIVERY IN L-L (LAND SOUTH OF THE HIGH STREET)  

 

To receive a verbal update from Mr S Mooring of Central Bedfordshire Council, 
including information on progress in respect to Town Centre economic support 
and High Street Funding and Ms S Childerhouse regarding licensing 
arrangements and other support for high street traders. 

 
 
1.4 Minute from the Meeting 
 

  ENABLING DELIVERY IN L-L (LAND SOUTH OF THE HIGH STREET)  

 

 By invitation, Mr S Mooring, Head of Place Delivery at Central Bedfordshire 
Council, attended the meeting to give an update in respect of the High Street 
Improvement Scheme and land south of the High Street.  Mr Mooring reported 
that the drop-in session held at the White House on the 12 February 2020 was 
well attended and proved a useful exercise and gave an insight into 
understanding key issues within the town.  A report would be circulated to 
committee members.  

 
The consultation regarding day care facilities had been paused because of 
COVID-19 and as the provision of a care home was linked to development of 
land south of the High Street, it was anticipated that the date would move from 
early 2022 to late 2022.   

 
 A question was raised as to what interest had been shown in the land south of 

the High Street.   It was confirmed interest had been shown by a hotel chain, 
for housing and office facilities but none of these interests had progressed.  It 

Page 18



 
  

Page 3 of 4   

 

was recognised that the COVID-19 pandemic had had a further adverse impact 
on the retail sector, with an additional increase in the already existing trend 
towards internet shopping.  It was suggested the land could be used as a multi-
functional community hub with a balance between commercial business and 
community use.  The social needs and issues within the town should be 
addressed when building on this land with a robust business case to move it 
forward to fruition.    

 
The Committee agreed that as the town was increasing in population more 
facilities were needed for young people to combat boredom and anti-social 
behaviour. Other suggestions included a hireable studio facility and community 
facilities suitable for evening classes such as pottery or photography.  A 
suggestion was made for Central Bedfordshire Officers and Councillors to view 
multi-use facilities in other towns, to gain information and ideas on what could 
be built here. 
 
It was suggested that a holistic view needed to be taken of the whole centre, 
reviewing existing facilities such as the Library/Theatre as well as considering 
whether vacant town centre premises could be repurposed for community uses. 
A suggestion was made regarding whether Central Bedfordshire Council could 
undertake an “audit of need”. Mr Mooring would talk to colleagues in the Leisure 
team on this.  
 
It was recognised that development on land south of the High Street would need 
to be commercially viable. The question was asked regarding Central 
Bedfordshire Council capacity to pull together a vision for the whole site and 
whether external consultants or developers could assist with this exercise. 

 
 
2.0 NEXT STEPS 
 
2.1 On 19th October 2020, the Town Clerk contacted the Head of Place Delivery at 

Central Bedfordshire Council requesting an up-to-date position in respects of 
the site known as Land South of the High Street, Leighton Buzzard. The above 
question was included within the correspondence.  

 
2.2 An action plan has not yet been produced in relation to Land South of the High 

Street. However, the following work strands are progressing: 
 

i) Conclusion of internal discussion at CBC with regards to possible service 
requirements for that area.  

ii) High level discussions with neighbouring landowners with regards to 
developing either a joint or complimentary scheme(s).  

iii) Comment on the Mayfair 500 proposal for land to the rear of the post 
office. 

iv) Clarification from the community as to what they would like (largely from 
the February drop-in session) but also from other representations.  

 

Page 19



 
  

Page 4 of 4   

 

2.3 The immediate next steps are to work with Town Council and CBC ward 
councillors via Cllr Morris’ informal southside working group to better define the 
ask in order to allow an indicative specification to be used to understand site 
layout, indicative construction costs etc as well as how this type of facility might 
be funded and operated.  

 
2.4 In parallel to this, CBC has undergone restructuring with Regeneration team 

moving to the new Place and Communities Directorate. One of the outputs CBC 
will be producing will be Place Plans (or similar) for all the major towns in Central 
Bedfordshire. Whilst the format has yet to be decided, it is envisaged that this 
will include the action plan for Land South alongside other projects.  

 
2.5 It remains the intention to continue to give regular updates via the Partnership 

Committee as well as committing to working directly with the Town Council 
(both officers and councillors).  

 
2.6 What does this Mean? 
 
2.7 The objective being to create a place plan document which evidences the need 

for action in improving the economic, social and environmental condition of a 
defined area. It is produced from an analysis of the latest data about the area 
and consultations with local people and businesses about what they think are 
the most important things that need to change. As well as a physical document, 
the place plan sets up a new way of working on shared priorities between 
stakeholders such as the town council, local business organisations and 
community groups, based on mutual trust and respect.  

 
 
 
 END 
 
 
 

Page 20



 
 
 
 
Council 

 
Date:    23rd November 2020    
 
Title:    Town Centre Bollards 
 
Purpose of the Report: To discuss a report from the Town Clerk 

concerning the installation of bollards in 
Hockliffe Street and Bridge Street in 
September 2020 by Central Bedfordshire 
Council, including consultation carried 
out with those businesses directly 
affected and with the public.    

 
Contact Officers: Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk. 
 

 
 

1.0 CONTEXT 
 
1.1 On 19th October 2020, the Town Clerk emailed the Strategic Transport Manager 

at Central Bedfordshire Council requesting information regarding the 
consultation process carried out in respects of the installation of bollards in 
Hockliffe Street and Bridge Street.  The following response was received on 
20th October 2020: 

 
“We have not consulted on the introduction of bollards which were introduced 
as a safety measure to protect people on foot using these roads. This 
includes vulnerable road users observed to divert into the carriageway to 
maintain a safe social distance, in large part because of parked vehicles. 

 
CBC can legitimately install the said barriers without the need to consult as 
they fall within their legal powers - the Highways Act 1980, specifically section 
62”.  

 
 END 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



 
 
 
 
Council 

 
Date:    23rd November 2020    
 
Title:    Canal Bridge Pedestrianised Crossing  
 
Purpose of the Report: To instruct the Town Clerk urgently to 

seek action by Central Bedfordshire 
Council to place a safety barrier at the 
top of the ramp from the towpath up to 
the Canal Bridge Crossing, as requested 
and agreed nine months ago.   

 
Contact Officers: Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk. 
 

 
 

1.0 CONTEXT 
 
1.1 At its meeting held 11th December 2019, the Streetworks Manager for Central 

Bedfordshire Council attended to discuss various matters including the 
potential trial introduction of traffic lights at the junction of Bridge Street and 
Leighton Road junction.  At the same meeting and on highway safety grounds, 
Committee raised its concerns in respects of the canal bridge crossing on 
Leighton Road (see attached photographs). For the Committee, the lack of a 
physical barrier between the rising canal footpath/cycle path and its intersection 
with Leighton Road represents a potential highway danger to cyclists, 
pedestrians and vehicles alike.  
 

1.2 At its meeting held 8th January 2020, the very same concerns were raised. 
Thereafter, the Town Council emailed Central Beds Highways Officers on this 
issue on 9th January and 20th February 2020, respectively. No response has 
been received from the Local Authority to date. 
 

1.3 A Land Registry search has identified that the slope is in fact within the 
ownership of the Canal and River Trust and not the Local Authority. On 22nd 
October 2020, the Town Clerk contacted the Canal and River Trust. On 29th 
October 2020, the Town Clerk received an email from the Trust requesting 
confirmation that the bridge in question was in fact the Grand Union Canal 
bridge and not the River Ouzel bridge.  As well as confirming its status as the 
canal bridge, the Town Clerk reiterated this council’s concern. In addition, an 
offer to part fund safety measures was also made. To date, no reply has been 
received back from the Trust.   This matter will be followed in due course.  
 

 
  

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 
  

Page 2 of 2   

 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 

View from Leighton Road toward the canal  

View westward along Leighton Road  

Page 24


	Agenda
	3 BUS SHELTERS
	4 SECTION 106 DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS
	5 LAND SOUTH OF THE HIGH STREET
	6 TOWN CENTRE BOLLARDS
	7 CANAL BRIDGE PEDESTRIAN CROSSING

